
Page 1 of 2 
 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING  
KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
 
Meeting Date:      Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
Time:        5:30 p.m. 
Location:       District Administration Building   
Remote Viewing Access:     http://bit.ly/3VEKbiU 
Remote Public Comment Sign Up Form:  https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk 
Interpretación al español estará disponible.  
 

AGENDA  
 

1. Call to Order – 5:30 PM       MICHAEL CONNORS 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Election of Officers 
  
3. Communications from Parents, Staff, and District Residents 
 
4. Consent Items 
 Approval of Board Minutes 

A. Minutes of School Board Meeting November 9, 2022 
  
 Legislative Items 

A. 2023 Board Legislative Priorities 
 
 Teaching and Learning Reports 

A. Career and Technical Education: 2022 – 2023 KSD & Tri-Tech Skills Center 
Perkins Assurances 

B. Recommendation of Approval of Instructional Materials:  
• Frida, author Kristy Placido, published by Fluency Matters. This 

material will be used in 9-12 grade World Language. 
• Mata la pinata, author Kristy Placido, published by Fluency Matters. 

This material will be used in 9-12 grade World Language. 
• IXL Learning, digital. This material will be used in K-12 grade Special 

Education. 
• Unique Learning Systems, digital. This material will be used in 6-12 

grade Special Education. 
 

  
 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fbit.ly%2F3VEKbiU&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7C31c768b3a52849b12b6808dad7a73140%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638059410333719542%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=H8HUhxOsgeTubonOgQkbPgYB5L9KG4JOruFl2xjjWfk%3D&reserved=0
https://bit.ly/3dn9dyk


KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
DR. TRACI PIERCE 
SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 

Page 2 of 2 

 
Human Resources Reports  
A. Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
B. Future School Year Calendars 
C. KSD-Maintenance and Operations Collective Bargaining Agreement 2022-

2025 
 
Business & Operations Reports  
A. Payroll and Vouchers Ending October 31, 2022 
B. Budget Status Report Ending September 30, 2022 
C. Resolution No. 2, 2022-2023: Cancellation of Outstanding Warrants 

 
5. Superintendent/Board Member Report 
  
6. Reports and Discussions 

A. Delta High School  K.C. BENNION 
B. Tri-Tech Skills Center  PAUL RANDALL 
C. 2021-22 Financial Close-out  VIC ROBERTS 
D. Boundary Process Overview  ROB PHILLIPS 

 
7. Unfinished Business 

A. Policy No. 2333 INSTRUCTION: Flag Exercises, First Reading 
 DR. TRACI PIERCE 

8. New Business 
A. Appointment of “Against” Levy Committee DR. TRACI PIERCE 

   
9. Next Meeting Agenda (Draft) – Semi-Annual Board Retreat 

A. Increasing community engagement and volunteerism/volunteer coordination 
B. Curriculum cycle 
C. Future facility planning/priorities and use of space  

 
10. Executive Session 

A. Per RCW 42.30.110 (1) (i) Legal Issue 
 

11. Other Business as Authorized by Law 
 
12. Adjourn 

 
 



 KENNEWICK SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 
 SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING / Remote Board Meeting 
November 9, 2022 

 
 M I N U T E S 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 

Board Members:  Michael Connors, President of the Board; Ron Mabry, Vice President 
of the Board (attending remotely); Diane Sundvik, Legislative Representative of the 
Board; Micah Valentine, Board Member; Gabe Galbraith, Board Member; London 
Moody, Student Representative to the Board; and Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent and 
Secretary of the Board. 
 
Cabinet Members: Dr. Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human 
Resources; Matt Scott, Assistant Superintendent of K-12 Education; Rob Phillips, 
Assistant Superintendent of Elementary Education; Alyssa St. Hilaire, Assistant 
Superintendent of Teaching & Learning; Vic Roberts, Executive Director of Business 
Operations; Robyn Chastain, Executive Director of Communications and Public 
Relations; Ron Cone, Executive Director of Information Technology.  
 
Other Guest(s):  Bronson Brown, District Legal Counsel 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President Michael Connors called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance with approximately 71 online and in-person staff and guests in attendance. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM PARENTS, STAFF, AND RESIDENTS 
  
 Allison Dabler shared that she is here tonight to say love must be louder than hate. She 

commented on pride flags and how many other things are happening at schools that are 
controversial and indoctrinating. 

 
 Tina Gregory stated that she stands against the woke agendas, woke pronouns, and 

sexualization of our youth.  
 
 Annette Rose commented on the American Flag and how it stands for every student and 

every person. She stated that the American Flag is the only Flag that represents everyone. 
She stated that the American Flag means you are accepted, you are free, and you get to be 
anyone you want because it gives you that right. 

 
 Lisa Peppard stated that she does not believe it is the Board’s job to censor everyone’s 

expressions of support for the LGBTQ community, and it is not the Board’s job to 
promote the nuclear family.  

 
 Silas Clayton spoke on the importance of Pride flags and inclusion.  
 
 Rob Woodford commented on flags and reminded everyone to vote yes on the levy. 
 



Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 2 
 
 
 Linda Stephenson acknowledged the amazing accomplishments of the Kamiakin High 

School Math team at the Math is Cool regional contest placing first in the 11th and 12th-

grade top division. She shared there will be an in-person Math is Cool Middle School 
contest in Richland on February 10, with Desert Hills Middle School participating. 

 
 Jason Goodwin commented on the Title 9 Federal Law that talks about sex discrimination 

and LGBTQ and how the law provides a safe place for students. He stated that the U.S. 
flag is the only Flag that should be allowed in the classroom as the U.S. flag stands for 
being one of the most tolerant nations in the whole world. Mr. Goodwin stated that the 
Board should be focused on The National Center of Education Statistics, showing the 
largest score drop in reading since 1990, along with score drops in math. 

 
 Carly Coburn commented that she is the chairperson for the local nonprofit PFLAG 

Benton Franklin. The organization offers advocates and supporters for the local LGBTQ+ 
community and educates people regarding LGBTQ+ issues. Ms. Coburn stated she is 
here tonight because of the flag policy and would like to hear from the Board on 
continuing a conversation where the Board can ask questions and discuss the realities of 
being LGBTQ+ and hopes the Board will do right by the LGBTQ + students in 
Kennewick. 

 
 Shelly Burt commented that she would like the School Board Meetings to start later as 

she feels it is difficult for people to arrive on time due to traffic. She also stated that the 
American Flag should be the only Flag in a classroom for students to know they are 
accepted and loved.  

 
 Roger Hayes shared that he is a combat veteran, and in his combat unit, they had Black, 

Puerto Rican, Hawaiian, and Hispanic people., He stated that they were diverse, and they 
all served one Flag. He said having a pride flag in the classroom is divisive and not 
helpful. Mr. Hayes shared that he is also concerned about the core curriculum and math 
scores dropping. He said he feels that’s what should be the focus. 

 
 Brian Achenbach shared that he served in the military under “Don’t Ask, Don’t Tell” and 

stated that if it weren’t for the United States Flag, there wouldn’t be any flags. He 
commented that many flags represent many things for many different people, and the 
educational system needs to focus on curriculum and educating students. 

 
RECOGNITION 
 
 Native American Heritage Month 

 
Superintendent Dr. Pierce read Governor Inslee’s Proclamation proclaiming November 
2022 as Native American Heritage Month. 

 
CONSENT ITEMS 
 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the consent items as presented. 
 



Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 3 
 
 
 Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 
 
  Roll call vote:  Mr. Connors  Yes 
     Mr. Mabry  Yes 
     Ms. Sundvik  Yes 
     Mr. Valentine  Yes 
     Mr. Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 The consent items were as follows: 
 

• Minutes of Regular Board Meeting October 26, 2022 
• Personnel Actions – Certificated, Classified, and Extracurricular 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending August 31, 2022 
• Payroll and Vouchers Ending September 30, 2022 
• Budget Status Report Year Ending August 31, 2022 

 
SUPERINTENDENT/BOARD MEMBER REPORT 
 
 Superintendent Dr. Traci Pierce reported on our mascot updates in the Kennewick School 

District, noting that the logos and imagery for the Braves mascot at Kamiakin High 
School is being updated, and the school is also providing learning opportunities about 
Yakama Tribal history and culture. Dr. Pierce added that the district appreciates the 
consultation process and the renewed relationship with the Yakama Tribe. 

 
 Student Representative to the Board, London Moody, reported she did not attend the 

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council meeting on November 9, 2022, but shared the 
discussion on bathrooms that occurred during the meeting,  

 
 Board Member Gabe Galbraith reported he attended Tri-Tech Skills Center’s soup 

competition. 
 
 Board Member Micah Valentine reported attending both the morning and afternoon Tri-

Tech Skills Center’s soup competitions. He also visited Legacy, Endeavor, Phoenix High 
Schools, and Amistad Elementary. 

  
 Board Member Diane Sundvik reported attending Tri-Tech Skills Center’s soup 

competition, WA DOH media briefing, WSSDA networking hour, Fuerza Book or Boo 
Bash, and Getting to Know KSD Safety and Security. She encouraged people to check out 
the Tri-Tech pies and sides that can be ordered for Thanksgiving. 

 
 Board Member Ron Mabry reminded the Board about the Amazing Shake and 

encouraged everyone to read a book. 
 
REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS  
 
 Discussion of Board Legislative Priorities 



Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 4 
 
 
  

Superintendent Dr. Pierce presented a draft of legislative priorities for 2023 and asked the 
Board to review it and let her know if they had any changes they would like her to make 
before the adoption at the December 14 School Board meeting. 
 
Following the Board discussion, Dr. Pierce was asked to present an updated draft for the 
Board to review. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 Resolution No. 1, 2022-2023: Educational Programs and Operations Levy 
  
 Superintendent Dr. Pierce presented a recap of the levy information followed by a 

recommendation for the approval of Resolution No. 1, 2022-2023: Educational Programs 
and Operations Levy. 

 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve Resolution No. 1, 2022-2023: Educational Programs 

and Operations Levy. 
 
Seconded by Gabe Galbraith. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Connors  Yes 
     Mabry   Yes 
     Sundvik  Yes 
     Valentine  Yes 
     Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 
 Appointment of “For” and “Against” Committees 
  
 Superintendent Dr. Pierce presented a recommendation for the Board to appoint Mary 

Lynn Merriman, Jan Fraley, and Pat Mastaler to serve on the committee to write the “for” 
statement for the levies for the voters’ pamphlet. 

 
 Motion by Diane Sundvik to approve the Board appointing the following individuals to 

serve as the committee to write the “for” statement for the levies for the voters’ pamphlet: 
Mary Lynn Merriman, Jan Fraley, and Pat Mastaler. 
 
Seconded by Micah Valentine. 

 
   Roll call vote:  Connors  Yes 
     Mabry   Yes 
     Sundvik  Yes 
     Valentine  Yes 
     Galbraith  Yes 
 Motion carried 5-0. 
 



Minutes 
November 9, 2022 
Page 5 
 
 
 Policy No. 2333 INSTRUCTION: Flag Exercises, First Reading 
  

Dr. Pierce presented a draft update of Policy 2333, which deals with displaying flags in 
schools and classrooms. Following the School Board discussion, the Board directed Dr. 
Pierce and district attorney Bronson Brown to update the draft, which will be presented to 
the Board at the next meeting. 

 
 7:15 p.m. Ron Mabry, excused 
 
NEXT MEETING AGENDA 
 
The Board reviewed items for the next meeting agenda:  
 

A. 2021-22 Financial Closeout 
B. Delta High School Annual Report 
C. Tri-Tech Skills Center Annual Report 
D. Boundary Process Overview 
E. Policy No. 2333 INSTRUCTION: Flag Exercises 

 
Ms. Sundvik asked that the Board have time to discuss the 2022 WSDDA Annual Conference they 
will be attending next week. 
 
There being no further business, the Board adjourned at 7:34 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ _____________________________ 
RECORDING SECRETARY PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 SECRETARY OF THE BOARD 
 
Approved:  December 14, 2022 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Femail-link.parentsquare.com%2Fls%2Fclick%3Fupn%3DlBbeDrTbYPefXonOfCI6wOX2r2Vtxp1YO7pUPqOdoqvDTcjaAxICmTQiHnkF6ScQQ4HwY9M2Mif21Pehp4kUybNqEn7dzD7ZMmV1BWkDURYJ0qMLbfZaKb6T5791IxQFfOHrs3eLemBjZzMdz1e4zA-3D-3DocLL_FdSwpbf6EuIT0B48-2BgZQT5ZwpeWIj8IIOAwp7N8zPIiloWrN3-2Bzokhuw23zCxMAqJSqeAAeYUEHOaa5DoEplwjaEQSEbwuPr2TAYjk8de3JukQeZSGbcQK8YyQAmW68Q5sCM6TJtSVqZuhFHcDMJao8WumOdgP9uMQsnSkJTXPSbmV7G6tiblF0P21054DQ1Vpk9hMVNiGk-2FT2hVkTpqmAkSKeqAYEeTx-2BIh7bAhAdj1HM-2BGN5vho4fSXzvuBGKHbup-2BfXmh-2F6MtEZ-2FXNrBRWw-3D-3D&data=05%7C01%7Cpatty.lord%40ksd.org%7Cb3ea4236351e4c8d749d08dac3972fce%7C00948c2509684d128618b9e148ccfe77%7C0%7C0%7C638037351352009138%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=uPM5C3dy9vPpQwC6a%2BE21x%2FaI64FVd2hwS9B3Iyc9Bs%3D&reserved=0


Access and Opportunity for Students and Educators
Ensure equitable access to technology 
resources including affordable devices and 
broadband access for students and 
families.

Support ongoing learning and professional 
development for teachers, staff, and 
administrators.

Advance policies to close the opportunity 
gap for persistently underserved students.

Provide supports for student 
social-emotional, mental, and behavioral 
health and safety needs. 

Provide the necessary support to implement 
Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) 
for students with disabilities.

Propose a constitutional amendment to 
eliminate the supermajority requirement and 
allow for simple majority passage of school 
construction bonds.

Update the School Construction Funding 
Assistance formula from pre-1979 
standards to reflect actual construction 
costs, educational needs, and legislative 
class-size language.

Safe and Sufficient School Facilities 

We applaud the legislature’s efforts to provide more adequate and equitable funding for school districts. We ask the legislature to 
continue to attend to its paramount duty to provide full funding and support for basic public education in the state of Washington 
by supporting the following: 

Board of Directors
Ron Mabry
Vice President

Michael Connors
President

Diane Sundvik
Legislative
Representative

Micah Valentine
Director

Gabe Galbraith
Director

London Moody
Student 
Representative

Dr. Traci Pierce
Superintendent

Our Mission
To provide a safe environment in which all students reach their highest potential and graduate well prepared for
success in post-secondary education, work and life.

2023 

Legislative Priorities

Adequate and Equitable K -12 Funding
Fully fund Basic Education.
Update staffing allocations in the Prototypical 
School Funding Model to reflect more realistic 
needs.
Adjust Regionalization and Experience factors 
to provide fair and equitable staff salaries.

Fully fund Special Education.
Fix the current Pupil Transportation Funding 
Model (STARS) to provide adequate resources.
Enhance student learning by funding Early 
Learning/Kindergarten Preparedness; 
Multilingual Education; Accelerated Programs; 
and Career and Technical Education.



            Career & Technical Education 
1000 W 4th Avenue 

Kennewick, WA 99336  
Phone: (509) 222-6982 

FAX: (509) 222-5053 
 

 
             

 
TO:   Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent  
  Kennewick School District Board of Directions 
 
FROM:  Tricia Anderson 
  Director of Career & Technical Education  
 
SUBJECT:  Perkins Assurances 
 
DATE:  December 8, 2022 
 
 
The Perkins grant is an integral part of the Federal act established to improve career-technical 
education programs, integrate academic and career-technical instruction, serve special 
populations, and meet gender equity needs. 
 
These allocations are a part of the state's Vocational Education Basic Grant Award from the U.S. 
Department of Education under the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st 
Century Act (Perkins V), previously known as the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education 
Improvement Act of 2006 (Perkins IV). 

 
Please see attached document for board approval. 
 
 
 





























































































 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TO: Dr. Traci Pierce, Superintendent 
Kennewick School District Board of Directions 

 
FROM: Alyssa St. Hilaire 

Assistant Superintendent 
 

SUBJECT: Recommendation of Instructional Materials                                         

 DATE: December 2, 2022                                          

Teaching and Learning Department 
1000 W 4th Ave 

Kennewick, WA 99336 
Phone: (509) 222-6423 

FAX: (509) 585-3046 

 

 

In compliance with Kennewick School District Policy 2310, the following instructional materials 
have gone through the approval process for the district and is now presented to the Kennewick 
School District Board of Directors for final approval and adoption. The materials have completed 
the review process involving faculty, parent/community members, district level curriculum 
advisory committee, district level instructional material committee and the Assistant 
Superintendent of Teaching and Learning/Secondary. 

 
Please see attached table for recommendations for board approval: 

 
 
 

Alyssa St. Hilaire 
Assistant Superintendent of Teaching and Learning 



Instructional Materials Committee 

November 17, 2022 

4:00pm-5:45pm 
 

Attendance: Elida Alvarez, Chad Foltz, Carla Zoerb, Jeff Pieros. Allison Dabler, Tina Brewer, 
Madge Pedersen, Leslie Sievers, Amanda Brown, Alyssa St. Hilaire, Linda Stephenson, Rhonda 
Pratt, Nick Nelson, Gayle Hayne 

 
Absent: Yvette Jaramillo, Jeff Joggerst, Jessica Robledo and Nesreen Hasson. 

 
 

 
Title 

 
Author 

 
Publisher 

 
  
Format 

 
Date 

Published 

 
Grade Level 

 
Action by IMC 

Frida Kristy Placido Fluency Matters     Book     2015 9-12,  
World Language 

Recommended 
 for approval 

Mata la piñata Kristy Placido Fluency Matters     Book    2018 9-12,  
World Language 

Recommended  
for approval 

IXL Learning Paul Mishkin, CEO   IXL Learning    Digital    2022 K-12,  
Special Education 

Recommended  
for approval 

Unique Learning 
Systems 

Jackie Clark, CEO 
Collaboration of 

N2Y, LLC 

  News to You    Digital    2022 6-12,  
Special Education 

Recommended  
for approval 

 
 

AS:kl 



CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE, TRANSFERS AND TERMINATIONS

Exhibit A: Lists new employment contracts, requests for leaves of absence, and terminations which have occurred for certificated 
employees since the last meeting of the Board of Directors.

Name School Position Justification FTE Date

Jessica Nunez Cascade Teacher - Elem Mace retirement 1.0 Eff. 11/16/22

Diana Fuentes Fuerza Teacher - Elem Temporary personal leave 1.0 12/1/22-1/3/23
Jessica Ford Canyon View Teacher - Elem LOA for remainder of year 1.0 Eff. 12/1/22

Katy Michel Cascade Counselor Personal LOA 1.0
Eff. 4/14/23 to 

end of year.

McKala Hamby Cascade Teacher - Elem Personal LOA 1.0
Eff. 3/13/23 to 

end of year.

Robin Duncan Ridge View Librarian Amended date 1.0 Eff. 1/29/2023

Kristi DeLancy Sgate Teacher - Elem Morris resig., adding .5 NON .5 C/.5 N Eff. 11/28/22
Yesica Uribe Egate to  Amistad Teacher - Elem Gregory resignation 1.0 Eff. 2023-24

RESIGNATIONS

IN DISTRICT 
TRANSFERS

DATE:  December 14, 2022

EXHIBIT A 

NEW POSITONS

REHIRE

REPLACEMENT

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 
REPLACEMENT

RETIREMENTS

12/14/2022 Page 1



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Name School Position Justification Hours Date

Megan Gray Amistad Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 11/15/2022

Araceli Lopez District-Wide
Temporary Health Room 

Personnel
Program Need 6.0 11/15/2022

Abbie Drake-Spier Cottonwood Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 1/4/2023

Heidi Pace Kamiakin Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 11/30/2022

Stacy Johnson Southridge Para/SS/LifeSkills Classroom Program Need 6.5 12/6/2022

Talitha Heffner District-Wide
Temporary Health Room 

Personnel
Program Need 6.0 11/15/2022

Sofia Mellish-Garcia Canyon View Para/SS/Tier II Behavior Program Need 6.0 11/22/2022

Leah Singer-Jett Southridge Para/SS/LifeSkills Program Need 6.5 11/22/2022

Elizabeth Diaz Highlands Para/FP/BE/Bilingual Replaces Amantina Jeppson 6.0 11/15/2022

Elizabeth Salas Chinook Para/SS/LifeSkills 1-1 Replaces Shauna Payne 6.5 11/14/2022

Faviola Samudio 

Chacon
Administration

Front Desk Receptionist/ 

Bilingual

Replaces Denisse Moran-

Pandya
8.0 11/14/2022

Deric Moore Kamiakin Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Kenton Bell 6.0 11/21/2022

Alexis Ames Amistad Para/SS/Tier II Behavior Replaces Juliana Furniss 6.0 12/1/2022

Isabel Ramos-Barboza Kennewick Para/FP/LAP Replaces Brendon Higham 7.0 12/6/2022

Lucas Guerrero Kennewick Para/FP/LAP Replaces Matias Mendoza 6.0 12/1/2022

Raeshell Lutes Vista Para/BE Replaces Paula Anderson 6.5 12/6/2022

Becky Nichol Hawthorne Para/Behavior Support Replaces Staci Burrill 6.5 12/12/2022

Tanya Romero Kennewick Para/SS/Autism 1-1 Replace Scott Norr 6.5 12/16/2022

Jordan Merrick Sunset View Para/SS/Tier II Autism Replaces Minky Sim 6.0 11/15/2022

Veronica Soria Washington Para/SS/Autism Classroom Replaces Devon Nield 6.5 12/12/2022

Doris Hurtado Rosas Transportation Bus Attendant 3.42 11/15/2022

Suzi Bullock Transportation Bus Driver 4.25 11/17/2022

EXHIBIT B: Lists new employment personnel actions and terminations for classified employees that have occurred since the last meeting of the Board of Directors

EXHIBIT B

DATE: December 14, 2022

NEW POSITONS

REPLACEMENT

12/9/2022 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Codi Bancroft Transportation Bus Attendant 2.92 11/21/2022

Viv Thielmann Transportation Bus Attendant 3.75 11/21/2022

Brindean Gamble Transportation Bus Attendant 3.33 11/22/2022

Maria Garces 

Betancourt
Chinook Para/SS/Autism Classroom Replaces Natalie Teeples 6.5 11/29/2022

Jake Chaussee Facilities Services Locksmith Replaces Eric Thoelke 8.0 12/5/2022

Larry Cooney Transportation Bus Driver 4.25 12/12/2022

Marci Webb Transportation Bus Driver 4.08 12/14/2022

Kayla Atkins Kennewick Para/SS/LifeSkills Replaces Marcus Dunnigan 6.5 11/28/2022

Scott Wheeler Transportation Bus Driver 4.25 11/8/2022

Teresa Gonzales Hawthorne Cook Replaces Ana Cuello 6.0 11/21/2022

Lauralai Pellman Kennewick Para/SS/Autism Classroom Replaces Gaylee Quam 6.5 11/29/2022

Kristie Burnett Canyon View Para/SS/Resource Room Replaces Shana Robinson 6.0 11/29/2022

Araceli Lopez District-Wide
Temporary Health Room 

Personnel
6.0 11/15/2022

Laurie Legard Ridge View Para/BE 2.75 11/14/2022

Danna Smith Desert Hills Kitchen Manager 6.75 11/30/2022

Megan Gray Amistad Para/SS/LifeSkills To sub para 6.5 12/1/2022

Maleyna Fuentes ECEAP Para/ECEAP To sub para 8.0 12/20/2022

Amita Thatsana Cottonwood Para/FP/LAP 5.0 1/13/2023

Lynn Huisingh Lincoln Lead Secretary To sub secretary 8.0 12/21/2022

Eli Crosby Transportation Bus Driver 5.08 1/6/2023

Viv Thielmann Transportation Bus Attendant To sub bus attendant 3.75 12/9/2022

Veronica Baldridge Amistad Para/SS/LifeSkills To sub para 6.5 12/12/2022

Carly McDaniel Chinook Para/SS/Tier II Autism 6.0 12/14/2022

Claudia Jimenez Amon Creek Para/SS/Autism 1-1 6.5 12/15/2022

Tara Bersosa Vista Para/BE 6.2 12/9/2022

Juana Perez Washington Para/FP/BE/LAP 6.0 12/21/2022

Benjamin Johnson
Horse Heaven 

Hills
Para/SS/LifeSkills 6.5 12/1/2022

REPLACEMENT CONT.

REHIRE

RESIGNATION

12/9/2022 AM



CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS

Philip Smith Westgate Para/SS/Tier II Autism 
To student teach; Until 

4/17/2023
6.0 1/4/2023

Kathryn Martell ECEAP Para/ECEAP To student teach 8.0 1/4/2023

America Fonseca Highlands Para/SS/Resource Room To student teach 6.0 1/4/2023

Elizabeth Rivera Transportation Bus Attendant N/A 11/16/2022

Holly Levy N/A Para N/A 12/11/2022

Jessica Garcia Sunset View Para/SS/Tier II Autism 6.0 11/17/2022

RETURN FROM LOA Brenda Cardona Canyon View Para/FP/ELL/ESL Replaces Carol Dickson 6.0 12/7/2022

TERMINATION

RETIREMENT

LAYOFF

RESIGNED FROM LOA

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

12/9/2022 AM



Page 1 
 

EXTRACURRICULAR 
ELECTIONS, LEAVES OF ABSENCE AND TERMINATIONS 

Exhibit C:  Lists new employment contracts and terminations that have occurred for supplemental contracts since the last meeting of the Board of Directors. 
BOARD MEETING DATE:  Wednesday, December 14, 2022 

EXHIBIT C 
SUPPLEMENTAL CONTRACTS 

ELECTIONS AND TERMINATIONS 
NAME SCHOOL POSITION JUSTIFICATION HOURS DATE 

NEW POSITIONS      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
REPLACEMENT 
POSITIONS Robert Martin Desert Hills MS Assist Boys Basketball Emergency Hire – Based on Numbers 

 2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 Shaun Suss Desert Hills MS Assist Boys Basketball Demerenyc Hire – Based on Numbers  
2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 
Lisa Martin 

Horse Heaven Hills 
MS Head Girls Basketball Replaces Alexandra Sparhawk  

2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 Zayid Al-Ghani Southridge HS Assist Boys Wrestling Replaces .5 – Steven Davis  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Jose Mendoza Southridge HS Assist Boys Wrestling Replaces .5 – Steven Davis  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Deric Moore Kamiakin HS Marching Band Replaces Aaron Clark  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Megan Deines Desert Hills MS Head Girls Basketball Replaces Crithy Legard  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Cyle DeLeon Desert Hills MS Assistant Wrestling Rehire  2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 
      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

      2022-2023 Sc Yr 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS DATE 
 

Seth Powers Highlands MS 
Assistant Girls 
Basketball One Year LOA 

2022-2023 Sc Yr 

     2022-2023 Sc Yr 
     2022-2023 Sc Yr 
RESIGNATIONS NAME SCHOOL POSITION COMMENTS   

 Eddy Mendoza KENEWICK HS Assistant Wrestling .5 FTE Contract 2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Tim Bisson Chinook MS Head Girls Basketball Resigned 2022-2023 Sc Yr 
 Christy Legard Desert Hills MS Head Girls Basketball Resigned 2022-2023 Sc Yr 

 



DR. DOUG CHRISTENSEN | Associate Superintendent of Human Resources 
1000 W. 4TH AVE. • KENNEWICK, WA 99336-5601 
PHONE: (509) 222-5010 • FAX: (509) 222-5051 
doug.christensen@ksd.org 

To:      Kennewick School District Board Members 
From:  Doug Christensen, Associate Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date:  December 9, 2022 
Re:   Future School Year Calendars 

The current KSD-KEA collective bargaining agreement (CBA) specifies that school year calendars will be 
developed for the duration of the CBA plus one year. Establishing multi-year calendars helps families 
and staff to plan accordingly.  

The KSD-KEA collective bargaining agreement specifies the following: 

Multi-year Calendar 
The Calendar Committee will use the following parameters to develop a calendar (or calendars) 
for the duration of the CBA plus one year. The one additional year will be subject to changes in 
bargaining: 

• Benton Franklin County Fair
• graduation
• spring break
• winter break
• first day of school
• last day of school
• holidays
• snow days
• ½ day employee release to exchange for Open House attendance
• last day for seniors
• conferencing and report card prep
• optional Professional Development Days

The Calendar Committee convened, per the CBA, to develop future school year calendars for school 
years 2023-24 through 2026-27. Calendars are presented for Board approval.  

mailto:doug.christensen@ksd.org


Kennewick School District Calendar 2023 to 2024 
  
 

Aug 2023 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30 31  

 

24 Staff Professional Day  
28 Staff Professional Day 
29 Professional Day & Staff Welcome Back 
30 First Day of School (ER K-8) 
 

 Sep 2023 
M T W T F 

    1 

4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 

18 19 20 21 22 

25 26 27 28 29 
 

4 No School (K-12) - Labor Day 
13 Early Release (9-12) 
22 No School (K-12) - Staff 

Professional Day (Focus on 
Instruction) 

 Oct 2023 
M T W T F 

2 3  4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 
16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31    

 

4 Early Release (9-12) 
13 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
13 No School for Kindergarten Students 
20 No School (K-12) Staff Professional Day 

 
 

    
Nov 2023 

M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30  

 

1 Early Release (9-12) 
3 End of 1st Quarter (6-12)  
9 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
10 No School (K-12) Veteran’s Day 
20 No School (K-12) Conferences 
21 Early Release (K-8) Conferences 
22 Early Release (K-12)  
23-24 No School (K-12) Thanksgiving 
30 End of 1st Trimester  

 Dec 2023 
M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

6 Early Release (9-12) 
20 Early Release (K-12) 
21-29 No School (K-12) Winter Break 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jan 2024 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 
15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30 31   

 

1-2 No School (K-12) Winter Break 
10 Early Release (9-12) 
15 No School (K-12) MLK Jr. Day 
24-26 High School Finals 
26 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
26 End of 1st Semester - Early Release (6-12)  
 

     
Feb 2024 

M T W T F 

   1 2 

5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 

19 20 21 22 23 

26 27 28 29  
 

7 Early Release (9-12) 
16 Early Release (K-12) 
19 No School (K-12) Presidents’ Day 
28 Early Release (9-12) 

 Mar 2024 
M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

8 Early Release (K-5), End of 2nd       
Trimester, Report Card Prep  

11 No School (K-12) (Snow Make-up) 
14-15 Early Release (K-5) Conferences 
22 No School (K-12) Professional Day 
27 Early Release (9-12) 
29 End of 3rd Quarter (6-12) 

 Apr 2024 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30    

 

1-5 No School (K-12) Spring Break 
26 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
 

     
May 2024 

M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

 

8 Early Release (9-12) 
24 No School (K-12) (Snow Day Make-

up) 
27 No School (K-12) Memorial Day 

 
 

  Jun 2024 
M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 

 

7 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
8 Class of 2023 Graduation 
10-12 High School Finals  
12 Early Release (K-12) - Last Day of    
School (30 days) (44 days) 

 Jul 2024 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30 31   

 

 
 

Every Wednesday is Early Release for K-8 students except for Highlands and Park Middle Schools. March 11 and May 24 are scheduled snow make-up 
days. Any other days that need to be made up will be added to the end of the school year. 



Kennewick School District Calendar 2024 to 2025 
  
 

Aug 2024 
M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

22 Staff Professional Day  
26 Staff Professional Day 
27 Professional Day & Staff Welcome Back 
28 First Day of School (ER K-8) 
 
 

 Sep 2024 
M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 

9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 

23 24 25 26 27 

30     
 

2 No School (K-12) - Labor Day 
11 Early Release (9-12) 
20 No School (K-12) - Staff 
Professional Day (Focus on 
Instruction) 

 Oct 2024 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 
14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30 31  

 

2 Early Release (9-12) 
11 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
11 No School for Kindergarten Students 
18 No School (K-12) Staff Professional Day 
30 Early Release (9-12) 

 
 

    
Nov 2024 

M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

1 End of 1st Quarter (6-12) (45 days) 
8 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
11 No School (K-12) Veteran’s Day 
22 Early Release (K-8) Conferences, End 

of 1st Trimester, 
25 No School (K-12) Conferences 
26 Early Release (K-8) Conferences (30 

days) 
27 Early Release (K-12) 
28-29 No School (K-12) Thanksgiving 

 Dec 2024 
M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31    

 

4 Early Release (9-12) 
23-31 No School (K-12) Winter Break 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Jan 2025 
M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

 

1-3 No School (K-12) Winter Break 
15 Early Release (9-12) 
20 No School (K-12) MLK Jr. Day 
22-24 High School Finals 
24 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
24 End of 1st Semester - Early Release (6-12)  

 

     
Feb 2025 

M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 

10 11 12 13 14 

17 18 19 20 21 

24 25 26 27 28 
 

5 Early Release (9-12) 
14 Early Release (K-12) 
17 No School (K-12) Presidents’ Day 
28 No School (K-12) Professional Day 
 

 Mar 2025 
M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 
31     

 

5 Early Release (9-12) 
7 Early Release (K-5), End of 2nd       
Trimester, Report Card Prep  

17 No School (K-12) (Snow Make-up) 
19 Early Release (9-12) 
20-21 Early Release (K-5) Conferences 
28 End of 3rd Quarter (6-12)  
31 No School (K-12) Spring Break 

 Apr 2025 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30   

 

1-4 No School (K-12) Spring Break 
25 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
 

     
May 2025 

M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 
12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

7 Early Release (9-12) 
23 No School (K-12) (Snow Day Make-

up) 
26 No School (K-12) Memorial Day 

 
 

  Jun 2025 
M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 
16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30     

 

6 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
7 Class of 2023 Graduation 
10-12 High School Finals  
12 Early Release (K-12) - Last Day of    
School  

 Jul 2025 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30 31  

 

 
 

Every Wednesday is Early Release for K-8 students except for Highlands and Park Middle Schools. March 17 and May 23 are scheduled snow make-up 
days. Any other days that need to be made up will be added to the end of the school year. 



Kennewick School District Calendar 2025 to 2026 
  
 

Aug 2025 
M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 

11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

21 Staff Professional Day  
25 Staff Professional Day 
26 Professional Day & Staff Welcome Back 
27 First Day of School (ER K-8) 
 
 

 Sep 2025 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17  18 19 

22 23 24 25 26 

29 30    
 

1 No School (K-12) - Labor Day 
10 Early Release (9-12) 
26 No School (K-12) - Staff 
Professional Day (Focus on 
Instruction) 

 Oct 2025 
M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

 

1 Early Release (9-12) 
10 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
10 No School for Kindergarten Students 
24 No School (K-12) Staff Professional Day 
29 Early Release (9-12) 
31 End of 1st Quarter (6-12)  
 

 
 

    
Nov 2025 

M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 

 

7 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
11 No School (K-12) Veteran’s Day 
21 End of 1st Trimester, Early Release- (K-

8) Conferences  
24 No School (K-12) Conferences 
25 Early Release (K-8) Conferences 
26 Early Release (K-12)  
27-28 No School (K-12) Thanksgiving 

 Dec 2025 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30 31   

 

10 Early Release (9-12) 
22-31 No School (K-12) Winter Break 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jan 2026 
M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 
12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

1-2 No School (K-12) Winter Break 
14 Early Release (9-12) 
19 No School (K-12) MLK Jr. Day 
21-23 High School Finals 
23 End of 1st Semester - Early Release (6-12) 
23 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  

     
Feb 2026 

M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 

9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 

23 24 25 26 27 
 

4 Early Release (9-12) 
13 Early Release (K-12) 
16 No School (K-12) Presidents’ Day 
27 No School (K-12) Professional Day 
 

 Mar 2026 
M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 

16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30 31    

 

4 Early Release (9-12) 
13 Early Release (K-5), End of 2nd       

Trimester, Report Card Prep 
16 No School (K-12) (Snow Make-up) 
19-20 Early Release (K-5) Conferences 
18 Early Release (9-12) 
27 End of 3rd Quarter (6-12) 
30-31 No School (K-12) Spring Break 

 Apr 2026 
M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30  

 

1-3 No School (K-12) Spring Break 
24 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
 

     
May 2026 

M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

6 Early Release (9-12) 
22 No School (K-12) (Snow Day Make-up) 
25 No School (K-12) Memorial Day 
 
 

  Jun 2026 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 
15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30    

 

3 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
6 Class of 2023 Graduation 
9-11 High School Finals  
11 Early Release (K-12) - Last Day of    
School  

 Jul 2026 
M T W T F 

  1 2 3 
6 7 8 9 10 

13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

 

 
 

Every Wednesday is Early Release for K-8 students except for Highlands and Park Middle Schools. March 16 and May 22 are scheduled snow make-up 
days. Any other days that need to be made up will be added to the end of the school year. 



Kennewick School District Calendar 2026 to 2027 
  
 

Aug 2026 
 M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 
31     

 

27 Staff Professional Day  
31 Staff Professional Day 
 
 

 Sep 2026 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 

7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 

21 22 23 24 25 

28 29 30   
 

1 Professional Day & Staff Welcome 
Back 

2 First Day of School (ER K-8) 
7 No School (K-12) - Labor Day 
16 Early Release (9-12) 
25 No School (K-12) - Staff 

Professional Day (Focus on 
Instruction) 

30 Early Release (9-12) 

 Oct 2026 
M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 
12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

9 No School for Kindergarten Students 
16 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
23 No School (K-12) Staff Professional Day 
 

 
 

    
Nov 2026 

M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 
9 10 11 12 13 
16 17 18 19 20 
23 24 25 26 27 
30     

 

4 Early Release (9-12) 
6 End of 1st Quarter (6-12)  
11 No School (K-12) Veteran’s Day 
13 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
20 Early Release- (K-8) Conferences 
23 No School (K-12) Conferences 
24 Early Release (K-8) Conferences 
25 Early Release (K-12)  
26-27 No School (K-12) Thanksgiving 

 Dec 2026 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 

14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30 31  

 

4 End of 1st Trimester – Early Release 
(6-12)  

9 Early Release (9-12) 
21-31 No School (K-12) Winter Break 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jan 2027 
M T W T F 

    1 
4 5 6 7 8 
11 12 13 14 15 
18 19 20 21 22 
25 26 27 28 29 

 

1 No School (K-12) Winter Break 
13 Early Release (9-12) 
18 No School (K-12) MLK Jr. Day 
27-29 High School Finals 
29 End of 1st Semester - Early Release (6-12)  
29 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
  

     
Feb 2027 

M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 

8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 

22 23 24 25 26 
 

3 Early Release (9-12) 
12 Early Release (K-12) 
15 No School (K-12) Presidents’ Day 
26 No School (K-12) Professional Day 
 
 

 Mar 2027 
M T W T F 

1 2 3 4 5 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30 31   

 

3 Early Release (9-12) 
12 Early Release (K-5), End of 2nd 

Trimester, Report Card Prep  
18-19 Early Release (K-5) Conferences 
22 No School (K-12) (Snow Make-up) 
31 Early Release (9-12) 

 Apr 2027 
M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

2 End of 3rd Quarter (6-12) 
5-9 No School (K-12) Spring Break 
 

     
May 2027 

M T W T F 

3 4 5 6 7 
10 11 12 13 14 
17 18 19 20 21 
24 25 26 27 28 
31     

 

7 Mid-Trimester (K-5)  
12 Early Release (9-12) 
28 No School (K-12) (Snow Day Make-up) 
31 No School (K-12) Memorial Day 
 
 

  Jun 2027 
M T W T F 

 1 2 3 4 
7 8 9 10 11 
14 15 16 17 18 
21 22 23 24 25 
28 29 30   

 

4 Early Release (K-5) Report Card Prep 
12 Class of 2023 Graduation 
15-17 High School Finals 
17 Early Release (K-12) - Last Day of    

School (30 days)  

 Jul 2027 
M T W T F 

   1 2 
5 6 7 8 9 

12 13 14 15 16 
19 20 21 22 23 
26 27 28 29 30 

 

 
 

Every Wednesday is Early Release for K-8 students except for Highlands and Park Middle Schools. March 22 and May 28 are scheduled snow make-up 
days. Any other days that need to be made up will be added to the end of the school year. 



Toni Neidhold 
Director of Human Resources 
1000 W. 4th Avenue 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 222-5010 | toni.neidhold@ksd.org | ksd.org

To: Kennewick School District Board Members 
From: Toni Neidhold, Director of Human Resources 
Date:  December 8, 2022 
Re: Summary of Maintenance and Operations-KSD Collective Bargaining Agreement 2022-2025 

An overview of the terms of collective bargaining agreement are as follows: 
• Contract duration: 3 years
• Compensation: The state salary flow through of the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD) only for each of

the 3 years. On an annual basis, the state applies an inflation rate to salary allocations to
districts equivalent to the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD). For 2022-23, the IPD is 5.5%. The IPD, as
determined by the state, will be applied to the base salary schedule (Schedule A) each year the
next three years. Structural Journeyman wages were increased an additional $1.50 per hour
above the 5.5% IPD and Mechanical Journeyman wages were increased an additional $2.50 per
hour above the 5.5% IPD to be competitive with prevailing wages in our neighboring districts and
community. Salary schedule steps and longevity steps were also adjusted.

• Other mutually beneficial contract language updates and adjustments with no costs. For
example:

o Bereavement and Personal Leave language
o Decreasing days in transfer qualification language
o Updated Paid Family Medical Leave and benefits language
o Required training for security staff

A full ratification document with all changes in blue font is attached. 

The KSE-M&O Collective Bargaining Agreement is presented for Board approval. 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Key:  Black = Current CBA Language     Blue = New Language    Strikethrough = Deleted Language       

 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

  Section 1.4.  

The bargaining unit to which this Agreement is applicable shall 

consist of all regular full-time and part-time classified employees in 

the following general job classifications: Mechanical to include 

Electricians, Plumbers, HVAC, Boilers and Vehicle Mechanics; 

Structural to include Carpenters, Painters, Welders. Locksmith 

(Grandfathered), Warehouse/Delivery, Printshop, Grounds, 

Custodial, Security; and General Laborer. 

 

10/6/22 

  Section 4.8.  

The District agrees to provide the following employee information in 

electronic format to the regional PSE office   

membership@pseofwa.org, and to the chapter president or  

membership officer (or whomever is responsible for 

membership), and the PSE Field Representative on a monthly 

basis: 

 

• Employee Names (who are hired, rehired, reinstated, 

transferred, reclassified, any type of leave including 

retirement) 

• Addresses (personal and work) 

• Phone Numbers (personal and work) 

• Email Addresses (personal and work) 

• ID Number 

• Job Classification 

• Job title 

• Job Location 

• Hire Date 

• Regular Dues/Agency Fee/Religious Objector Status Union 

dues paid 

 

10/6/22 

  Section 8.1 Holidays 

All employees shall receive the following paid holidays that fall 

within their work year: 

1. New Year's Day                      7. Thanksgiving Day 

2. Presidents' Day                        8. Day after Thanksgiving Day 

3. Memorial Day                         9. Day before or day after Christmas 

4. Independence Day                 10.  Christmas Day 

5. Labor Day                             11.  Martin Luther King Day 

6. Veterans' Day                        12. Juneteenth (June 19) 

                                                   13. Day before or day after New 

                                                         Year’s Day 

Holidays will be listed in calendar order 

 

11/1/22 

mailto:membership@pseofwa.org


Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

  Section 9.2.  Bereavement Leave. 

One (1) to five (5) days in succession will be granted by the 

supervisor without deduction in pay Each employee shall be 

entitled to one (1) to a maximum of five (5) days leave with pay 

for each occasion when the absence is caused by the death of a 

relative or other (as approved by the District). for bereavement 

leave when such absence is occasioned by the death of a relative. The 

number of days granted shall be mutually determined between 

the employee and his/her supervisor. Bereavement leave is 

allowed to be taken in hourly increments, or half day or whole 

day increments. Additional days in excess of the five (5) 

bereavement days may be requested shall there be extenuating 

circumstances, as related to an immediate family member. Additional 

leave shall be deducted from vacation or personal leave if approved 

by Human Resources.  Relative is to include domestic partner and 

family of domestic partner.  The number of days granted shall be 

determined between the employee and supervisor.  Employees shall 

be allowed time off entitled to up to one (1) day with pay to attend 

the funeral of a friend or co-worker.  An official death notice, funeral 

notice or program may be requested by Supervisor upon the 

employee’s return.   

 

10/20/22 

  Section 9.3.2  Personal Leave 

Each employee shall be granted entitled to annually three (3) days of 

personal leave discrete from sick leave.  Employees may cash out 

unused days of personal leave at 100% of employee’s current 

hourly rate of pay or accumulate An employee may accrue up to a 

maximum of four (4) five (5) days of unused personal leave, or may 

cash out a maximum of two (2) days of unused leave at current rate 

of pay in August or may roll unused leave one-hundred percent 

(100%) into the employee’s sick leave bank, as long as the sick leave 

does not exceed a total accrual of twelve (12) days per year or any 

combination thereof.  The appropriate district form must be 

completed and turned into payroll by July 31st of each year.  

Notification, whenever possible, will be scheduled with the 

Immediate Supervisor in advance.  Employees shall be entitled to 

use personal leave in hourly, half day (1/2 day), or full day 

increments. 

 

11/1/22 

  Section 9.7.2 

Workers Compensation (L & I) or Medical Leave of Absence. When 

an employee is anticipated to be on extended leave of less than ninety 

(90) consecutive workdays for documented medical reasons the 

temporarily vacated position will be filled by a substitute employee, 

if a need exists. When an employee is anticipated to be on an 

extended leave of more than ninety (90) consecutive days and up to 

fifteen (15) twelve (12) calendar months, the position will be posted 

10/20/22 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

as temporary in accordance with Section 10.8.1. for up to fifteen (15) 

twelve (12) calendar months, inclusive of the initial date of absence. 

If it is known through medical documentation or the employee’s self-

report that the medical leave will exceed fifteen (15) twelve (12) 

calendar months inclusive of FMLA and paid sick leave, their 

position will be posted as a continuing position. If the District has 

received medical notification that the employee will no longer be 

able to perform the essential functions of the position, and after 

discussion with the employee, the District has determined that no 

reasonable accommodation can be made, the position will be posted 

as a continuing position. The employee may remain on a leave of 

absence and will be eligible to bid on available positions, for which 

they are qualified or will be placed in a position in accordance with 

Section 9.7.2., when released to return to work. Employees shall 

retain their seniority date during this period for up to two (2) years 

from the initial date of leave.  

The returning employee will be assigned to a comparable position if 

available to the position occupied before the leave of absence. An 

employee returning from a Leave of Absence defined under Section 

9.7.1. & 9.7.2 or lay-off as defined under Article X without an 

established position will be placed in a substitute or temporary 

position until a successful bid on an available position takes place. 

During this time, the employee will be paid at the wage of the 

position he/she is substituting in; but at the Step they were on prior to 

the Leave of Absence/Layoff, and will not receive other benefits, but 

may continue COBRA (insurance) payment. Seniority will continue 

as defined in Section 10.5. 

  Memorializing MOU dated 8/13/21 

 

Section 9.8.  

Employees are eligible to apply for Paid Family and Medical 

Leave (PFML) benefits as allowed by law:  

 

• The District shall annually notify employees about the 

benefits available under PFML. 

 

• Employees will be required to file a claim for PFML 

benefits with the Employment Security Division (ESD) at 

the following email address https://paidleave.wa.gov/get-

ready-to-apply/ all payments will come from the ESD.   

 

• PFML benefits shall include up to twelve (12) weeks of 

paid leave per year to care for self or family unless 

otherwise extended by specific circumstances. See above 

website.  

10/6/22 

https://paidleave.wa.gov/get-ready-to-apply/
https://paidleave.wa.gov/get-ready-to-apply/


Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

• To qualify for PFML, employees must work eight hundred 

and twenty (820) hours or more in the qualifying period, 

which shall be defined as the first four (4) of the last five 

(5) completed calendar quarters starting from which the 

employee makes their claim for benefits.  PFML may not 

be taken without a qualifying event.  

 

• Employees should go to https://esd.wa.gov/paid-family-

medical-leave/benefits or www.paidleave.wa.gov for all 

information pertaining to this leave.  

 

• All paid leave shall count towards hours worked for PFML 

accrual purposes. If paid leave is used concurrently with 

PFML it will be considered a supplemental benefit. 

Example: (PFML may pay 90% of employee’s wage, 

employee may utilize their own leaves to supplement the 

10% pay loss). 

 

  Section 10.7.1. 

Full time and regular employees who bid on and are awarded 

a position in a classification outside their current 

classification or a Lead position in accordance with Section 

10.7., shall be considered to be in a qualification period not to 

exceed sixty (60) twenty (20) workdays, with the right to 

return to his/her previous position.  During this period, the 

employee will be evaluated and/or trained in the skills and 

requirements of the new position. A substitute employee shall 

be assigned to fill such employee’s former position during the 

qualification period if necessary.  An employee may 

voluntarily request to return to his/her former position or may 

be returned to his/her former position if found to be deficient 

in the skills of the position during the qualification period.  

Any decision to return an employee to his/her former position 

will be made by the sixtieth (60th) twentieth (20th) workday.  

 

Employees who apply for and are awarded the General 

Laborer position will only have sixty (60) workdays to return 

to their former position, regardless of the six (6) month 

qualification period per Section 13.3. Return rights after the 

sixty (60) workdays will be adhered to as per Section 13.3.  

 

11/1/22 

  Section 10.8 

With the exception of 10.7.1, the District shall publicize the 

availability of post all new or vacant positions within ten (10) 

workdays of the creation of such openings. All open positions shall 

be posted at each building in designated areas or placed in Job 

posting notebooks. Posting at Maintenance and Transportation shall 

be posted in the Mechanics area, the Maintenance office area, and the 

10/14/22 

https://esd.wa.gov/paid-family-medical-leave/benefits
https://esd.wa.gov/paid-family-medical-leave/benefits


Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

Warehouse. A copy of each posting shall be provided emailed to the 

Chapter President. All postings shall be publicized posted on the 

District website for five (5) workdays., at the above noted sites, 

before the opening is filled. The job posting shall include the 

minimum hourly rate. 

  Based on MOU signed January 2020 which will create a re-

numbering of Article XII. The parties acknowledge that Sections: 

12. 2., 12.3., 12.4., 12.7., 12.8., 12.9, 12.10., 12.11., 12.12., and 

12.13. will sunset with the implementation of the SEBB. 

Section 12.1. 

The parties agree to abide by state law relating to School District 

Employees Benefits.  The School District shall not use state benefit 

allocations for any purpose other than insurance benefits.  

 

The employer agrees to provide the insurance plans, follow 

employee eligibility rules and provide funding for all bargaining 

unit members and their dependents as required by State law, the 

State Operating Budget, and the School Employees’ Benefits’ 

Board (SEBB).  Inclusive of employer funding will be payment of 

the retiree carve-out for all eligible employees.  

Eligibility 

• SEBB health care plans are available for individual 

employees who work a minimum of 630 hours or are 

anticipated to work 630 hours or more in school year 

(September 1 – August 31).  

 

Programs 

The regionally accessible health care programs provided by 

SEBB carriers will be available to employees and will include: 

REQUIRED (100% covered premium) 

• Vision 

• Dental 

• Basic Life 

• Long Term Disability 

• AD&D Insurance 

 

Voluntary 

• SEBB medical plans  

 

Other Benefits 

Flexible Spending Arrangement, Medical Flex, Savings 

Accounts, Dependent Care Assistance, and other voluntary 

10/6/22 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

employee paid SEBB programs will be available to employees 

under terms as determined by SEBB.  The District will provide 

access to an  

 

Employee Assistance Program at no cost to the employee. 

Other Non-SEBB programs are available to employees but are 

not funded from the amount provided by the District.  

 

The District and Association will mutually determine non-

SEBB voluntary plans. These plans may not be implemented 

without prior written agreement of the District and 

Association.  A list of the programs eligible for payroll 

deduction is available at the District payroll office.   

 

Enrollment Period 

Enrollment period will be from October 1 to November 15 or as 

otherwise set by SEBB.  When the enrollment ends, no 

insurance options may be added or deleted during the contract 

year except for changes in family status or job status. If an 

employee fails to enroll within the open enrollment period the 

employee will be placed on the default medical, dental and 

vision plans as determined by SEBB.  

 

If an employee is hired after the open enrollment period, he or 

she may enroll in approved plans prior to the first day of the 

following month. If the employees fail to enroll, they will be 

placed in a default medical, dental and vision plans as 

determined by SEBB. Coverage will begin the first day of the 

month following the date of hire.  

 

Termination of Benefits 

For employees who resign their position but are employed 

through the last workday of the school year, their resignation 

will be deemed effective on August 31 and their SEBB benefits 

will continue to that date. When resignation/termination takes 

places during the school year, the employee’s SEBB benefits 

will continue to the last day of the month in which 

resignation/terminations occurs.  

 

 

Sharing Health Care Contributions  

SEBB does not allow for dual coverage within SEBB.  

Spouses/domestic partners who are both employees of the 

District may choose to enroll both employees for medical 

coverage under one (1) SEBB account along with medical and 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

required benefits for their dependents.  However, each 

employee must register for dental, vision and other required 

benefits under their own SEBB account.  

 

Health Care Authority (HCA) 

The HCA contributions will be paid in full by the district SEBB 

remittance. 

 

Ineligibility 

If the District does not anticipate an employee will be eligible, 

they must notify the employee as per all SEBB rules and laws. 

The District will not deny or limit an employee’s work hours 

for the purpose of preventing SEBB benefit eligibility.  

   

Memorializing MOU dated 8/13/21 

 

Section 13.7.  

District Security staff shall be required to complete training on 

thirteen (13) mandated topics within six (6) months of starting 

their position. Requirements also include two days of on-the-job 

training and six (6) check-ins with identified experienced staff. 

ESDs are required to develop and administer an annual safety 

and security staff training program that meets these training 

requirements. Classroom training can be done remotely or in-

person, synchronously or asynchronously. Notification will be 

provided thirty (30) days prior to the training being offered, if 

possible. Registration fees shall be covered by the district and if 

the training will be conducted outside of the employees regular 

contracted day, the employee shall be paid their regular rate of 

pay. Current security staff hired prior to this agreement shall be 

allowed to complete this training within six (6) months from the 

first day of school, unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties.  

 

10/6/22 

  Section 14.1.  Authorizations and Revocations. 

Each employee subject to this Agreement, who, on the effective date 

of this Agreement, is a member of the Association in good standing 

shall, as a condition of employment, maintain membership in the 

Association in good standing during the period of this Agreement. 

 

An employee's written, electronic, or recorded voice 

authorization to have the employer deduct membership dues 

from the employee's salary must be made by the employee to 

Public School Employees of Washington (PSE). If the employer 

receives a request for authorization of deductions, the employer 

shall as soon as practicable forward the request to Public School 

Employees of Washington (PSE). 

10/6/22 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

 

Upon receiving notice of the employee's authorization from 

Public School Employees of Washington (PSE) the employer 

shall deduct from the employee's salary membership dues and 

remit the amounts to Public School Employees of Washington 

(PSE), by the first Monday following payroll.  

 

The employee's authorization remains in effect until expressly 

revoked by the employee in accordance with the terms and 

conditions of the authorization. An employee's request to revoke 

authorization for payroll deductions must be in writing and 

submitted by the employee to Public School Employees of 

Washington (PSE) in accordance with the terms and conditions 

of the authorization. Revocations will not be accepted by the 

employer if the authorization is not obtained by the employee to 

Public School Employees of Washington (PSE).  After the 

employer receives confirmation from the exclusive bargaining 

representative that the employee has revoked authorization for 

deductions, the employer shall end the deduction effective on the 

first payroll after receipt of the confirmation. The employer shall 

rely on information provided by the exclusive bargaining 

representative regarding the authorization and revocation of 

deductions. 

 

Section 14.2. 

All employees subject to this Agreement who are not members of the 

Association on the effective date of this Agreement, and all 

employees subject to this Agreement who are hired at a time 

subsequent to the effective date of this Agreement, shall, as a 

condition of employment, become members of the Association.  Such 

employee shall then maintain membership in the Association or pay a 

representation fee during the period of this Agreement. 

 

Section 14.3. 

The parties recognize that an employee should have the option of 

declining to participate as a member in the Association, yet 

contribute financially to the activities of the Association in 

representing such employee as a member of the collective bargaining 

unit.  Therefore, as an alternative to, and in lieu of the membership 

requirements of the previous sections of this Article, an employee 

who declines membership in the Association may pay to the 

Association each month a representation fee as a contribution 

towards the administration of this Agreement in an amount equal to 

the regular monthly dues.  This representation fee shall be collected 

by the Association in the same manner as monthly dues. 

 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Section 14.4. 

Any current employee, who refuses to become a member of the 

Association in good standing or pay the representation fee in 

accordance with the previous sections, shall be immediately 

discharged from employment by the District. 

 

Section 14.5 2. New Employee Access. 

The District will notify the Association of all new hires within ten 

(10) workdays of the hire date.  At the time of hire, the District will 

inform the new hire of the terms and conditions of this Article. The 

District will provide the exclusive bargaining 

representative/Association representative reasonable access to 

new employees of the bargaining unit for the purposes of 

presenting information about PSE to the new employee. The 

presentation may occur during a new employee orientation 

provided by the District, or at another time mutually agreed to 

by the District and PSE. The District’s representatives shall not 

be present during PSE’s presentation. 

 

“Reasonable access” for the purposes of this section means: 

 

• The access to the new employee occurs within ten (10) 

days of the employee’s start date within the bargaining 

unit;  

• The access is for no less than thirty (30) paid minutes; and  

• The access occurs during the new employee’s regular 

work hours at the employee’s regular worksite, or at a 

location mutually agreed to by the District and PSE. 

 

The District will provide PSE monthly electronic list of all newly 

hired bargaining unit employees.  Information shall include: 

employee name, address, personal phone number, personal email 

address, classification,  job title, work location, and start date.  

 

Section 14.6. 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall require Association 

membership of employees who object to such membership based on 

bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body 

of which such employee is a member.  Such employee shall pay an 

amount equivalent to normal dues to a nonreligious charity or other 

charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the employee and 

the Association.  The employee shall furnish written proof that such 

payment has been made.  If the employee and the Association cannot 

agree on such matter, it shall be resolved by the Public Employment 

Relations Commission pursuant to RCW 41.56.122. 

 

 

 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

Section 14.7 3.  Check Off. 

The District shall deduct PSE dues or a representation fee from the 

pay of all eligible employees.  The District shall transmit all such 

funds deducted to the Treasurer of the Public School Employees of 

Washington on a monthly basis. 

 

It is mutually agreed that in accordance with RCW 41.56.110, the 

School District shall withhold the employee’s current monthly 

dues, assessments, voluntary political contributions by payroll 

deduction upon an employee’s written, electronic, or recorded 

voice authorization and remit them to the Treasurer of the State 

Office of the Public School Employees of Washington. 

Transmissions will include payments and electronic list of all 

represented employees with deduction amounts.  A dues 

remittance form needs to accompany the payment every month 

and include membership status changes. 

 

Section 14.8 4.  Political Action Committee. 

The District shall, upon receipt of a written authorization form that 

conforms to legal requirements, deduct from the pay of such 

bargaining unit employee the amount of contribution the employee 

voluntarily chooses for deduction for political purposes and shall 

transmit the same electronically to the Union on the Union dues 

transmittal check.  The employee may revoke the request at any 

time.  At least annually, the employee shall be notified by the PSE 

State Office about the right to revoke the request. 

 

  Section 17.2.1. 

Salaries contained in Schedule A shall be for the entire term of this 

Agreement. 

 

• 2022-2023: All employees shall receive a five-point five 

(5.5%) IPD increase.  

Structural Journeyman will receive a one dollar and fifty cent 

($1.50) per hour increase in addition to the 5.5% IPD increase.  

Mechanical Journeyman will receive a two dollar and fifty cent 

($2.50) per hour increase in addition to the 5.5% IPD increase. 

 

• 2023-24:  All employees receive IPD. 

 

• 2024-25:  All employees receive IPD. 

 

 

  Section 17.2.3. 

Incremental steps, where applicable shall take effect as 

follows: 

 

 

 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

260 Day Employees 

Step 1: Assigned to all new employees with limited 

experience in the field for which they are hired. 

 

Step 2: Assigned at the beginning of the next contract year 

(September 1st), as long as the employee has been in Step 1 

for at least six (6) months of the previous contract year  

or for new employees with significant experience in the 

position for which they are  

hired. 

 

Step 3: Will be applied to those beginning their 10th 5th 

year of service within the bargaining unit on September 1st 

following the anniversary date of that year. 

 

Step 4:  Longevity:  Will be applied to those beginning 

their 16th 8th year of service within the District on September 

1st following the anniversary date of that year.  

 

Longevity (12-15 Years): Will be applied to those 

beginning their 12th year of service with the District on 

September 1st following the anniversary date of that year.   

Longevity is .75% above Step 4. 

 

Longevity (16-20 Years): Will be applied to those 

beginning their 16th year of service with the District on 

September 1st following the anniversary date of that year.  

Longevity is 1.5% above Step 4. 

 

Longevity (21+ Years): Will be applied to those beginning 

their 21st year of service with the District on September 1st 

following the anniversary date of that year.  Longevity is 

2.5% above Step 4. 

 

 

Less than 260 Day Employees 

Step 1: Assigned to all new employees with limited 

experience in the position for which they are hired.  

 

Step 2: At the beginning of the next contract year 

(September 1st) as long as the employee as been in Step 1 for 

at least six (6) months of the previous contract year or for new 

employees with significant experience in the position for 

which they are hired.  

 

Step 3: Will be applied to those beginning their 10th 5th 

year of service within the bargaining unit on September 1st 

following the anniversary date of that year. 



Kennewick M&O Ratification Document        11/14/2022 

   DRAFT 

Article Section Proposal Date TA 

 

Step 4:  Longevity:  Will be applied to those beginning 

their 16th 8th year of service within the District on September 

1st following the anniversary date of that year.  

 

Longevity (12-15 Years): Will be applied to those 

beginning their 12th year of service with the District on 

September 1st following the anniversary date of that year.   

Longevity is .75% above Step 4. 

 

Longevity (16-20 Years): Will be applied to those 

beginning their 16th year of service with the District on 

September 1st following the anniversary date of that year.  

Longevity is 1.5% above Step 4. 

 

Longevity (21+ Years): Will be applied to those beginning 

their 21st year of service with the District on September 1st 

following the anniversary date of that year.  Longevity is 

2.5% above Step 4. 

 

  Section 18.1. 

The term of this Agreement is from September 1, 2017  2022 to 

August 31, 2021 2025.  Insurance and Schedule A will be re-opened 

annually, however the term of this contract will follow language in 

17.2.1. 

 

 

  Section 18.3. 

This Agreement may be reopened and modified at any time during its 

term upon mutual consent of the parties in writing; provided that this 

Agreement shall be reopened annually as necessary to consider 

legislative impact.  Further, Schedule A and Insurance shall be re-

opened each year of the term of this contract, unless otherwise noted 

in Section 17.2.1.    

 

  

































 
 
 
Kennewick School District #17, 1000 West Fourth Avenue, Kennewick, WA 99336-5601 

 
 

Resolution No. 2  
2022-2023 

 
Cancellation of Outstanding Warrants 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Kennewick School District issues several thousand warrants each year to pay for 
payroll, food, and services, and 

WHEREAS, each year, several warrants are unclaimed, and 

WHEREAS, attempts have been made to notify recipients of the unclaimed warrants, and 

WHEREAS, R.C.W.39.56.040 AND RCW 36.22.100 requires the cancellation of warrants not present 
for payment within one (1) year of the date of issue, now therefore 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Kennewick School District No. 17 directs the Benton 
County Treasurer to cancel unclaimed warrants amounting to $927.14 in the General Fund #6517-101 
and $90.00 in the ASB Fund #6517-112. 

ADOPTED this 14th day of December 2022. 

 

Attest: ___________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Directors  
 

                  _______________________________________ 
                   President, Board of Directors 
 
      _______________________________________ 
          Vice President, Board of Directors 
 
      _______________________________________ 
        Member, Board of Directors 
 
       _______________________________________ 
         Member, Board of Directors 
 
      _______________________________________ 
          Member, Board of Directors 
 

bml/Resolutions [R 12-14-2022] 



P&i*^
Benton County Treasurer's Office
Kennettr Spencer, Treasurer

BEHTON
ew,

RE: Cancellation of Unclaimed Warrants One Year or Older

Attached is a listing of unclaimed warrants dated on or before December 31,

2021, thal have not been presented for payment. In accordance with RCW
39.56.040, these unclaimed warrants are to be cancelled by passage of a
resolution by your governing body if not presented within one year of their issue
date.

Please send written notice of the passage of the resolution canceling these
unclaimed warrants to the Benton County Treasurer's Office. Upon receipt
of that notice the Treasurer's Office will void these warrants and provide a copy
to the County Audito/s Office.

lf we can be of any further assistance and/or if you should have any questions,
please contact Jeanette Ulrick or Lisa Lorentsen.

Date:

To:

Cc:

From:

PO Box 69o
Prosser WA 99950

November 18.2022

Brandon Lord, Kennewick School District #17

Aileen Coverdell, Chief Accountant
Jeanette Ulrick, Manager of Treasury Operations

Kenneth Spencer, Benton County Treasurer

Phone (5o9) 786-2255
Gog) zg6-So8Z

Phone (so9) 735-8sos
www.co.benton.wa.us

Fax 286-5528

Fax 7gG27os



Stale Dated Warrants
Kennewick SD #17

Thursday, November 17,2022 3:03:34 PM

chk_date
Gen6ml

29Jan-21

26-Feb'21

3GAPr-2l

28-May-21

30-Jun'21

30Jun-21

30'Jul-2'l

3G€eP-21

30-SeP'21

15-Oct-21

29-Oci-21

30-Nov-21

30-Nov'21

20-oec-21

2GDec'21

ASB
l5{ct'21
15-Oci-21

15-Oci-21

lrod-21

chk_no vend_code bank_code

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0,133

0433

0433

0i133

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

0433

amount

386853 517'101

387123 517101

701906 517101

388027 51710'l

388306 5't7101

388394 51710'l

701964 517101

389140 517101

389153 517101

389306 517101

702097 517101

702116 517101

702117 517101

389901 517101

389981 51710r

64880 517112

u89/. 517112

64901 517112

64903 517112

13.76

8.00

60.66

6.00

11.11

15.00

668.84

10.00

20.00

5.00

'i8.82

25.08

7.U
49.70

$927 14

30.00

30.00

15.00

15.00

------- 
90.00



Annual Reports to the Board:

Delta High School 
&

Tri Tech 

December 14, 2022 





Annual KSD Board Presentation
December 14, 2022

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photos:Organic Chemistry Class, October 22UW College Tour, October 22



About Delta

Delta’s Mission
Delta is a small, highly personalized high school that attracts a 
broad spectrum of students who are immersed in science, 
technology, engineering, and mathematics (STEM) learning 
experiences. We integrated the humanities and STEM fields to 
prepare students to succeed in post-secondary education, careers, 
and citizenship.  Learning parallels how scientists, engineers, 
and mathematicians conduct inquiries, solve problems, and 
expand knowledge, with learning partnerships that connect 
academic learning to the world beyond the classroom.

Delta High School is an inclusive, public program of the 
Kennewick, Pasco, and Richland School Districts.  All students 
are selected by randomized lottery.



About Delta

• A rigorous STEM program
• Hands-on opportunities to demonstrate learning
• Project-based learning
• Ready for college-level work and industry after 

graduation
• Work-based learning

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:Health Science DayGuest presenter was from SIGN Fracture Care

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photos:Organic Chemistry Class, October 22UW College Tour, October 22



About Delta

• School opened in 2009 with first class of freshmen on a 
temporary campus in Richland

• During the 2014-2015 school year the new campus was 
constructed

• September 2015 the new facility opened in Pasco.



About Delta
• Pasco School District is the fiscal agent for Delta and 

supports our building and technology needs
• Students/teachers from all three districts
• Students attend all four years at Delta and attend a Delta 

graduation
• Students receive diplomas from their home high schools in 

our three partner districts (and are considered students at 
these schools while attending the Delta STEM program)

• Extra-curricular opportunities at Delta and at home high 
school

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:Delta Ambassadors with WRPS PresidentMock Interviews are coming up January 27th.  We need 50+ volunteers from the business community to participate.  

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:Health Science DayGuest presenter was from SIGN Fracture Care



Our Partners (just to name a few!)



Signature Events
• College & Career Roadshow(9th

Grade)
• B Reactor Tour (9th Grade)
• LIGO Field trip (9th Grade)
• Delta History Fair, History Day 

competitions (9th – 11th Grades)
• STEM-Con (9th – 11th Grade)
• Health Science Day (10th Grade)
• Resume Reviews (11th Grade)
• Mock Interviews (11th Grade)
• Job Shadow Week (11th Grade)
• Intern Fair (11th Grade)
• College Tours (11th-12th Grade)

• Elementary / Middle School 
Outreach (Ambassadors)

• Winter Wishes campaign
• Multi-Cultural Week
• Club competitions and field trips
• PBL Showcase Nights
• Family Awards Nights
• School Awards Ceremony
• Senior Capstone Presentations

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:Delta Ambassadors with WRPS PresidentMock Interviews are coming up January 27th.  We need 50+ volunteers from the business community to participate.  



22-23 Student Enrollment (compiled 11-4-22)

9th Grade Annual Enrollment is based on the 
lottery.

Annual commitment expected for all students enrolling 
at Delta High School.



College in the High School
• Students are able to take college courses from CWU 

adjunct faculty on our campus (Delta teachers)

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo: Students at Welcome Back BBQ



College in the High School

Running Start Program through CBC
Qualifying students may graduate from Delta while 
concurrently earning an AA degree from CBC (and 
remaining on the Delta campus for most or all of the day)

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:9th grader at College & Career Roadshow; Welding Activity



21-22 School Demographics 

54%36%

5%
3%1% 1%

Enrollment By Ethnicity

White Hispanic
Multiracial Asian
Black American Indian

56%
44%

Enrollment By Gender

Male Female

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo: Students at Welcome Back BBQ



21-22 School Demographics

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Largest group is STEM careers at 32% followed by Health Science at 15%

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:9th grader at College & Career Roadshow; Welding Activity



Impactful Life Long Learning / Planning

• Robust Advisory Program
– Teachers meet with students 3 times a week to 

develop College and Career Readiness
– Teachers meet with students once a week for a 

Character Strong Lesson



Class of 2022 Data

1% 6%
2%

8%

1%
5%

15%

6%
6%2%2%

32%

14%

Class of 2022 Career Pathways

Agriculture, Food & Natural Resources

Architecture & Construction

Arts, Audio/Video Technology &
Communications
Business, Management & Administration

Education & Training

Finance

Health Science

Human Services

Information Technology

Law Public Safety, Corrections & Security

Marketing, Sales & Service

Science, Technology, Engineering &
Mathematics
Other

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Largest group is STEM careers at 32% followed by Health Science at 15%



Class of 2022 Data

• Graduation rate: 97% (85/87 students total; 28 KSD)

• Total Scholarship & Grant Offers: > $2.6 Million

4 Yr College
45%

Community 
College

33%

Trades
2%

Workforce
14%

Mission
1%

Gap Year
1%

Unknown
4%

Post High School Plans

4 Yr College
Community College
Trades
Workforce
Mission
Gap Year
Unknown

79% went 
on to higher 
education

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:�Class of 2022



Apply for the Class of 2027 Now!



Questions?

STEM Lighthouse
School – 2013

Award of 
Excellence – 2015

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
Photo:�Class of 2022



TTSC logo





Tri-Tech is…
• A cooperative of Pasco, Richland, Ki-Be, Finley, Columbia Burbank, 

North Franklin, Prosser School Districts and hosted by the Kennewick 
School District. 

• A branch campus of every high school in the area providing high quality, 
high expense, low enrollment preparatory Career and Technical 
programs that are not feasible or sustainable to offer at a single high 
school. 

• Full year programs serve juniors & seniors in high school who are 
on track to graduate.

• Summer introductory classes for freshman through seniors
• Students who are home-schooled, attend private school, on-line 

school or have a GED

• Long history of success - opened in 1981



Tri-Tech is…
• School of Choice

• Nineteen high quality Preparatory Career and 
Technical Education programs

• Relevant and contextual application-based learning 
environment

• Facility replicates the worksite
• Industry standard based curriculum 
• Mantra “What would your employer say?”

• Time to focus while maintaining a connection to the 
sending high school

• ½ the day at Tri-Tech 
• ½ the day at their sending high school



Current Programs

• Autobody Technology • Dental Assisting • Pre-Nursing

• Automotive Systems • Diesel Technology • Pre-Electrical

• Broadcasting Today • Digital Arts & Filmmaking • Pre-Physical Therapy

• Construction Trades • Early Childhood Education • Pre-Vet Tech 

• Cosmetology • Fire Fighting • Welding Technology

• Culinary Arts               • Game Design (Comp. Sci)

• Cyber Security (Comp. Sci) • Law Enforcement



The Role We Play
• Help students strategically plan with a career in mind
• Preparing students for the workforce and post-secondary 

education 
• There is significant and growing workforce demand for students in CTE. 

• Serve as a capstone for high school CTE programs and launch to 
post-secondary options

• Provide rigorous and relevant Career and Technical Education 
programs

• Connected and responsive to Business and Industry through 
Advisory Committees

• Potential New Programs: HVAC-R and Pre-Medical Assisting

• Latest Technology
• Tri-Tech Employment Portfolio



Examples of the Tri-Tech Advantage

• Internships and Clinical
• Dental Assisting, Pre-Nursing, 

Pre-Physical Therapy 
internships

• Automotive and Diesel
• Kadlec Externship Program

• Resident Firefighting placements at 
regional fire districts

• Construction Trades and Pre-
Electrical transition to work and 
apprenticeships 

• Career Launch Endorsed programs
• Automotive and Diesel 

Technology
• Firefighting and Emergency 

Medicine



Examples continued

• Industry Recognized Certificates and Licenses 
• OSHA 10/30
• ASE Student Certification
• Certified Nursing Assistant licensure
• American Culinary Federation
• MERIT STARS Workforce Registry 

• CTE Dual Credit 
• Time and Money Saved – since 2000
• Over 50,000 credits earned
• Over $6m dollars saved in tuition 



Demographic Data



October Headcount
2021-2022 2022-2023 Difference 

KSD 294 321 +27

PSD 214 272 +58

RSD 142 180 +38

Small SD 164 205 +41

Total 814 978 +164



Gender

2021-2022 2022-2023

Female 46% 47%

Male 54% 53%

X <1% <1%



Ethnicity

American Indian/Alaska Native

Asian
1%

Black/African American
1%

Hispanic
48%

Multi-Racial
3%

Native Hawaiian/Other 
Pacific Islander

<1%

White
46%

December 2022 Data



Special Populations

109, 11%
21, 2%

890, 87%

IEP/504/No Designation

IEP

504

No IEP/504



Focus Areas for 
2022-2023



Connecting with our families





Expansion of Worksite Learning



TT East 
Building C
-Pre-Electrical 
-Pre-Vet Tech











Thank you

• Questions and Comments?



General Fund Year End 
Financial Report 2021-22

December 14, 2022



2



3



4



5



General Fund 2022-23 
Budget Update



7



Projected ESSER Funding Use For 
2022-23

8

Program/Use Amount
Online Program Staff $1,450,000

Mental Health Contract – High School/Middle School 630,000

Tutoring Services 500,000

Summer School 750,000

Curriculum/IT System/Data Collection Enhancements 750,000

Teacher Training/Other Support/In Building Subs 250,000

Maintain Staff Positions 5,000,000

Total $9,330,000

Other Costs To Be Reimbursed From ESSER 
-Employee COVID Related Absences 19/20 – 21/22:  $2.32M
-Evaluating Capital Project Upgrades/Improvements
-Possible Curriculum Adoption Cost ?2023-24?



Next Steps
• Continued 2022-23 Budget Monitoring/Management 

• Using ESSER funding, fund balance, and budget reductions/not filling vacant positions to mitigate lost 
2023 property tax revenue resulting from levy failure.

• All are conscientious of budget situation.
• Special education enrollment exceeding budget resulting in increased funding.
• 2022-23 Transportation Funding Finalized By State in March (based on spring 2022/fall 2022/winter 2023 

ridership) 
• Manage ESSER funding and budget to get District through school years 2023-24, 2024-25, 2025-26.  

• Proposed levy amounts that failed to pass in 2022 were reduced for the February 2023 levy.
• Greater commitment toward re-purposing funding for future use to lower levy amounts presented to 

voters.  

• 2023-24 Budget  

• Preliminary Budget Work: January 2023 – May 2023/Adopt Budget June 2023
• February 14, 2023 levy vote will impact the 2023-2024 school district revenue as voters will be voting 

for the 2024 levy as well as 2025 and 2026. 
• 2023-24 enrollment growth not expected to be significant.
• Special education enrollment has been increasing.  
• Social Emotional Learning (SEL) Year 2 Phase In Funding.
• Legislative session January 9, 2023 - April 23, 2023.

• Adopting biennium budget (2023 – 2025), impact on school district funding TBD.
• ESSER $ continued to be used for 2023-24 budget to backfill lost levy and levy equalization funding from 

the 2023 levy failure. 
• ESSER $’s Are One-Time Funding Through August 31, 2024

9



Boundary Change 
Process Overview

December 14, 2022



December 14, 2022



December 14, 2022



KSD Elementary Boundaries



Background and History

Most recent boundary changes:

• 2017-2018
Process completed for opening of Amon Creek 
Elementary School

• 2018-2019
Process completed for increasing enrollment at 
Amistad Elementary School



Background and History

Process for making decisions about boundary adjustments:

• Utilize mapping software to evaluate options
• Determine criteria for decisions

oTransportation
oWalk zones
oProgram placements (Special Education)
oGrandfathering students

• Convene committee and facilitate community input process
• Seek board feedback and direction
• Complete board approval process



Current Situation 

School Enrollment* Capacity
Edison 326 406
Ridge View 334 520**
Vista 358 402
Sunset View 388 441
Washington 399 422
Canyon View 404 446
Hawthorne 476 476
Westgate 433 435
Southgate 439 439
Lincoln 441 522
Cottonwood 452 513
Eastgate 493 534
Cascade 540 541
Fuerza 587 587
Sage Crest 624 625
Amistad 635 695
Amon Creek 739 749
*October 2022
**New Building



Goals for Boundary Adjustment 

• Distribute enrollment more equitably amongst schools
• Accommodate future growth in the west end of the district 
• Increase enrollment at the new and larger Ridge View
• Decrease enrollment at Amon Creek and Sage Crest



Other Schools

• Sunset View
• Edison
• Vista
• Lincoln
• Hawthorne
• Potentially Westgate and others



Boundary – Pros and Cons

Pros Cons
• Avoid over-crowding
• Avoid adding portables
• Avoid staffing challenges 

(Admin, counseling, specials)
• Avoid having too small of 

schools
• Avoid resource issues

• Families love their schools 
and don’t want to change

• Potential staff moves



Boundary Process and Timeline 

December 14, 2022 Board Meeting – Boundary Overview and Plan

December 2022 – February 2023 Internal Work/Committee Work

February 22, 2023 Board Meeting – Share Boundary Update & Scenarios

March 2023 Parent Meetings/Feedback Processes

April 26, 2023 Board Study Session – Boundary Update/Scenarios

May 10, 2023 Board Meeting – Initial Recommendation

May 24, 2023 Board Meeting – Final Recommendation/Board Action 

Timeline
Complete the process in 2022-23 school year to determine new boundaries to 
take effect in Fall 2024



Questions?



 2333 
 
INSTRUCTION 
 
Flag Displays and Exercises 
 
The flag of the U.S. stands as the universal and most singularly important emblem of 
America. (Note: Board wanted to discuss) The flag of the United States and the flag of 
the state shall be prominently installed, displayed and maintained in schools. A United 
States flag being in good condition shall be displayed during school hours at every school 
site and in every school classroom. Flag exercises shall be conducted in each school on a 
minimum of once per day, including but not limited to the opening of all school assemblies. 
 Students not reciting the Pledge of Allegiance shall maintain a respectful silence. 
 
Flags Other Than the United States Flag 
 
A flag is defined as, “a piece of cloth, usually rectangular, of distinctive color and design, 
used as a symbol, standard, signal, or emblem.” When permanently displaying flags other 
than the United States flag in schools, the following restrictions apply: 
 
 

• No flag larger than the United States flag may be displayed. 
• No flag may be hung higher than the United States.  
• Multiples of the same flag may not be displayed. 
• Flags may not be used to cover a window.  
• No flag may be hung in a manner that causes distraction. (NOTE: Board needs to 

discuss this as it is subjective) 
 
In addition, no posters or other signage may be used like a flag to signal or attract attention. 
(NOTE: Board needs to discuss this as it is subjective)  
 
 
Legal Reference: RCW 28A.230.140 United States flag--Procurement, Display 

display, Exercisesexercises--National 
Anthem.--Non-Compliance, Penalty 

   RCW 1.20.015 Display of national and state flags. 
 
Adopted:  April 28, 1993 
Revised:   July 12, 2006 
Revised:   December 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Bold, Highlight

Formatted: Font: Bold, Highlight

Formatted: Font: Bold

https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=28A.230.140


Board Discussion 
Regarding flag displays: 

• More prominent 
• Larger 
• Hung higher 
• Hung over a window or hang multiple flags of the same flags  
• Hung in a manner that causes distraction (eg hung over windows, having multiple 

flags (many of the same flags)  
• Should be done as committee? Board not prepared to discuss 
• Would like to discuss changes 
• After definition  - or something used like a flag to signal or attract attention (i.e. 

posters)  
• First sentence: The flag of the U.S. stands as the universal and most singularly 

important emblem of America 
• Wording to include permanent displays  
• Subjective parts/wording need to be considered 
• Community needs to see the draft in full to be able to comment/time to do it 

correctly/legally 
• Bronson stated that policy needs to not be subjective so it can be enforced 
• Bring back updated draft for first reading 
• Be sure to add legal references  
• Note the items that are ambiguous 
• Draft something that is close to a finished product 

 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.25" +
Indent at:  0.5"



Appointment of “Con” 
Committee for Levy



“For”/”Against” Committee Appointment

• For each ballot measure, the School Board shall formally 
appoint committees “For” and “Against” the ballot measure 
(i.e. adopt completed form available in the Jurisdiction 
Guide on the Elections Department website) – RCW 
29A.32.280.

• The Board must appoint persons known to favor or oppose 
the ballot measure to serve on the respective committees.

• Committees are limited to not more than 3 members per 
committee.

• The school district is not involved in preparing any “For” 
and “Against” statements or rebuttals. The Board’s sole 
duty is to appoint “For” and “Against” committee members. 



“For”/ “Against” Committee Appointment

• The District must notify the public that “For” 
and “Against” committee members are being 
sought (notice posted on district website or 
in local newspaper).

• The District is responsible for providing 
committee members with copies of 
instructions, specifications and deadlines for 
all statements.
o Must be filed with the Elections Department no 

later than the deadline for filing the elections 
resolution 



Response 

The following individual submitted interest in being 
appointed to write the “against” statement for the 
levies for the voters’ pamphlet: 

• Dallas Burt



Recommendation 

The Board appoint the following individuals 
to serve as the committee to write the 
“against” statement for the levies for the 
voters’ pamphlet:

• Dallas Burt 


	School Board Meeting Agenda 12-14-2022
	CONSENT ITEMS
	School Board Meeting Minutes 11-9-2022
	2023 Board Legislative Priorities
	Career & Technical Ed: 2022-23 KSD & TTSC Perkins Assurances
	KSD Perkins Assurance
	Tri-Tech Skills Center Perkins Assurance

	Recommendation of Instructional Materials
	Personnel Action Items
	Certificated Personnel Action Items 12-14-2022
	Classified Personnel Action Items 12-14-2022
	Extracurricular Personnel Action Items 12-14-2022

	Memo: Future School Year Calendars
	KSD Calendar 2023-24
	KSD Calendar 2024-25
	KSD Calendar 2025-26
	KSD Calendar 2026-27

	Memo: Summary of Maintenance & Operations - KSD Collective Bargaining Agreement 2022-2025
	Payroll and Vouchers Ending October 31, 2022
	Budget Status Report Ending September 30, 2022
	Resolution No. 2, 2022-2023: Cancellation of Outstanding Warrants

	REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS
	Delta H.S. & Tri-Tech
	2021-22 Financial Close-out
	Boundary Process Overview

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Policy No. 2333 INSTRUCTION: Flag Exercises, First Reading

	NEW BUSINESS
	Levy "Against" Committee Appointment




